
AGENDA 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

10:00 a.m., Friday, February 17, 2023 

 

EISENHOWER STATE OFFICE BUILDING 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 450 & 460 

Topeka, KS 66603 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes of January 13, 2023 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature. If requested by a commissioner, 

an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed under Commission Items 

for further discussion and consideration. 

 

1. Approvals and revocations for certain lottery facility games and related components  

a. GLI Approval Letters February 2023 

b. GLI Revocation Letters February 2023   

c. GLI Approval Letters – Correction January 2023 

d. BMM Approval Letters February 2023 

e. BMM Revocation Letters February 2023 

2. Internal Control Amendment Approvals 

a. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway Internal Control Amendment Approvals 

E. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 

1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort 

a. January Monthly Report 

b. January Revenue Report 

 



2. Kansas Star Casino  

a. January Monthly Report 

b. January Revenue Report 

3. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway 

a. January Monthly Report 

b. January Revenue Report 

4. Kansas Crossing Casino  

a. January Monthly Report 

b. January Revenue Report 

F. COMMISSION ITEMS – OLD BUSINESS 

None 

G. COMMISSION ITEMS – NEW BUSINESS 

None 

 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

I. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Judith Taylor, General Counsel 

a. Voluntary Exclusion Program Report  

2. Don Brownlee, Executive Director 

J. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

The Commission conducts executive sessions in accordance with the Kansas Open 

Meetings Act and all discussions are limited to the specified purposes listed in K.S.A. 75-

4319. The Commission utilizes executive sessions to consult with the Commission’s 

attorney on confidential legal matters, to discuss confidential personnel matters, to 

protect the confidentiality of necessarily closed information including licensee 

background reports, and to protect the integrity of gaming information and the 

confidentiality of lottery gaming facility manager finances.  

 

 



The following items will be discussed during the first executive session:     

 

1. Background Reports 

 

The following items will be discussed during the second executive session: 

 

1. Attorney/Client Privilege  

 

K. OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

 

1. Consideration of proposed gaming licenses and renewals 

 

L. ADJOURNMENT 



KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES – JANUARY 13, 2023 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

(A.) 

 Chairman David Moses called the January 13, 2023, meeting to order at 10:00 

a.m. The meeting was held at the Eisenhower State Office Building in 

Topeka, Kansas. Notice of this meeting was given to the public via the KRGC 

and Public Square websites. Commissioners Brandon Jones, Larry Turnquist, 

and Sheryl Spalding were also present. Others present included Executive 

Director Don Brownlee, General Counsel Judith Taylor, Director of 

Administration, Audit, and Finance Brandi White, Director of Sports 

Wagering and Licensing DJ Lopez, Director of IT&C-s Dennis Bachman, and 

other staff. 

   

MOTION, APPROVE 

AGENDA 

(B.) 

 Commissioner Spalding (Jones) moved to approve the agenda. Motion 

carried 4-0. 

   

MOTION, APPROVE  

 December 16, 2022 

MEETING MINUTES 

(C.) 

 Chairman Moses noted that the submitted December minutes had 

inaccurately recorded his comments on having a commission meeting the day 

following the historical horse racing public meeting in Sedgwick County. 

 

Commissioner Turnquist (Jones) moved to approve the minutes of December 

16, 2022 meeting as amended. Motion carried 4-0.  [Note: The requested 

amendment was made by the recording secretary and presented later in the 

meeting for signing.] 

   

MOTION, APPROVE 

CONSENT AGENDA  

(D.) 

 Commissioner Jones (Turnquist) moved to approve the consent agenda (four 

items). Motion carried 4-0.  

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; 

BOOT HILL CASINO & 

RESORT 

(E.1.a.) 

 Diane Giardine, General Manager, reported: 

•  December 2022 revenue numbers compared to December 2021: 

o Total gaming revenue decrease 2.39% 

o Total slot revenue down 8.54% 

o Table games revenue up 61.99% 

o Patron count was flat year over year 

o Chairman Moses asked for more information on the “Other 

Number” line item in the unaudited revenue report. Director 

of Administration, Audit, and Finance, Brandi White clarified 

that the Lottery will adjust throughout the month for several 

reasons, some examples being misplay on table games or 

mispayments, but primarily that number is derived from the 

lost and found funds. The Lottery will quarterly take the lost 



 

and found funds from the casinos and make a lump-sum 

payment depending on the revenue distribution numbers.  

• December 2022 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 

o Retail Sportsbook Revenue $29,535.00  

▪ Up 1609.68% from November 2022 

▪ Handle grew 38% month over month 

▪ Currently operating a temporary retail sportsbook 

▪ Planning to have grand opening March 9-12 

▪ 46% of wagers were on the NFL 

▪ 18% of wagers were on the NBA 

▪ 19% of wagers were on College Football 

o Digital Sportsbook Revenue: $5,686,207.00 

▪ Up 23.62% from November 2022 

• Events and Promotions: 

o Weekly Kiosk Games  

o Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 

o Gift Promotions 

o Snowball Hot Seats 

o VIP Promotions  

o Promotions for United Wireless Arena Events 

o Free Play Pick ‘Em for KU and K-State games 

o Home for the Holidays – December 3rd, 10th, and 17th  

o Charity Match Hot Seats 

o Manheim Steam Roller and Jamie Johnson - December 16 

o Holiday Donation Drive 

o Fort Dodge Hero Tree 

o NYE Cash Blowout Money Machine 

• Upcoming Entertainment & Events 

o Glenn Miller Orchestra – February 4th  

o Hairball – February 10th  

o For King & Country – April 29th  

o Soccer: Kansas Bandits – December – March 

o Football: Southwest Storm – March – May 

• Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report 

o 257 active employees as of December 31, 2022 

o 66 hired during the reporting period 

o 63 new hires have taken TIPS testing during the reporting 

period 

o 29 existing employees have recertified their TIPS testing for 

another 3-year period 



 

o 193 active employees completed annual refresher training 

for TIPS/Responsible Alcohol Service during the 4th 

Quarter of 2022 

o BHCMC, LLC has four certified TIPS Trainers on property 

o 64 new hires have taken Responsible Gaming during the 

reporting period 

o 210 active employees completed annual refresher training 

for Responsible Gaming during the 4th Quarter of 2022 

o BHCR participated in Responsible Gaming Education 

Month in September 2022 

o 4 VEPs were refused entry to the casino floor 

o 5 VEPs were removed from the casino floor 

o 29 individuals were refused entry because they appeared 

intoxicated 

o 56 individuals were removed because they appeared 

intoxicated 

o 251 minors were refused entry to the casino floor 

o 2 minors were removed from the casino floor 

o 263 individuals were denied entry for not having an ID  

o 268 individuals were denied entry for having an invalid ID 

• COVID-19 

o 3 positive cases in December 

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; 

KANSAS STAR 

(E.2.a.) 

 

 

Doug Lang, Vice President and General Manager, reported: 

• General Manager Lang began his report with an announcement from 

FanDuel regarding the tragedy that occurred on 1/9/23. He explained 

that when the game was suspended, FanDuel also suspended betting 

on the game. The NFL confirmed that the game was suspended and 

would not restart until 1:00pm the following day. Later, the NFL 

confirmed that the game was suspended and would not restart within 

week 17. At that point, FanDuel voided all open wagers on the game. 

Any wagers that were settled prior to the game’s suspension were 

honored.  

o Commissioner Turnquist asked if there were any issues at the 

retail location during this time. General Manager Lang 

explained that there were not any issues at the casino 

o Chairman Moses asked if the way FanDuel handled this 

tragedy is the standard for the industry. General Manager 

Lang said that FanDuel’s response was the same in each 

jurisdiction they operate in, but he could not speak towards 

whether other platforms took the same action. Chairman 

Moses asked General Manager Diane Giardine if her vendor 



 

responded similarly. She responded saying that they had the 

exact same response.  

• Admissions up 0.5% compared to December 2021 

•  December 2022 revenue numbers compared to December 2021: 

o Total gross gaming revenue down 4.5% 

o Slot coin-in down 6.7% 

o Slot hold down 0.16 pts 

o Table games drop up 9.6% 

o Table games hold down 1.4 pts 

• January 2023 Sports Wagering 

o For the first 12 days of the month, $19 million in digital 

sportsbook revenue. Over $450 in handle with a 15% margin, 

which is outpacing December at the same time last year. With 

NFL playoffs coming soon, it is anticipated this will continue.  

• Past Events and Promotions:  

o Farm Expo Trade Show – December 1-3, 2022 

• Upcoming Events and Promotions: 

o Wichita Flea Market – January 14-15, 2023 

o Kansas Groundwater Convention – January 18-19, 2023 

o Asian Variety Show – January 21, 2023 

• Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report 

o During the second half of 2022, Kansas Star Casino 

processed 118 new team members through new hire 

orientation. 

o In addition to the training given in new hire orientation, all 

Kansas Star Casino team members undergo annual refresher 

training in Responsible Gaming. 

o All Front of House Food and Beverage managers and team 

members that participate in the serving of alcoholic 

beverages, all Security Staff, all Valet Staff, Slot Floor 

persons and above, Table Games Dealers and above, 

Surveillance Staff, and all Directors are subject to a more 

intensive alcohol awareness training program called, 

ServSafe. 

o In the second half of 2022, 73 team members took the 

ServSafe training, and 2 team members failed, and 2 team 

members will be required to re-take the training until they 

received a passing score. 

o The Kansas Star Casino has 1 certified ServSafe Trainer and 

3 Responsible Gaming Trainers on property. 

o As of December 31, 2022, Kansas Star Casino had 631 

active team members.  



 

o Underage individuals denied gaming floor access: 119 

o People denied access for not having ID: 452 

o People denied for invalid ID: 262 

o Intoxicated individuals denied gaming floor access: 69 

o VEPs denied access to the gaming floor: 2 

o There were 143 intoxicated individuals ejected from the 

casino, 

o 5 VEPs were removed and turned over to the KRGC and the 

Mulvane Police Department 

o 2 underage persons were caught and ejected from the casino 

o 74 persons were removed and 14 excluded from the casino 

for a variety of other reasons. 

o During the second half of 2022, there were 616,027 guests 

who entered the casino floor. Security team members 

checked 72,192 IDs. In addition, 70 ID checks took place on 

the gaming floor in situations involving suspected minors. 

• COVID-19 

o 16 positive Covid cases in December. 

    

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO 

AT KANSAS 

SPEEDWAY 

(E.3.a.) 

 Lydia Garvey, Vice President & General Manager, reported:  

• General Manager Garvey begins her report by handing out updated 

revenue reports that were not ready in time to be submitted for 

inclusion in the agenda.  

• Admissions were up 9.1% compared to December 2021 

•  December 2022 revenue numbers compared to December 2021: 

o Total gross gaming revenue up 3% 

o Slot revenue down 3.1% 

o Coin in up 2.1% 

o Table games revenue up 36.5% 

o Table Drop up 33% 

• December 2022 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 

o Sportsbook Revenue was $389,000 down $409,000 or 51% 

compared to November.  

o Sports Book Highlights 

o Top 4 Events in December  

1. Rams vs Seahawks  

2. Ohio Bobcats vs Toledo Rockets 

3. Buccaneers vs Saints  

4. K-State vs Alabama 

o Chiefs were the favorite for online wagers. As of 

December, the most money is wagered on the Chiefs to 

win the Super Bowl.  



 

o The event with the most amount wagered was Georgia 

Bulldogs vs Ohio State 

o The event with the most number of wagers was Chiefs vs 

Broncos 

o Chiefs, Jayhawks, and Wildcats are the most bet teams 

o Barstool Sportsbook handled the 1/9/23 game suspension 

similarly to FanDuel. Of the funds being returned to patrons, 

80% has been claimed.  

▪ Chairman Moses asked what happens to any funds 

that are not reclaimed. General Manager Garvey 

explains that after a year the funds will go through the 

same procedure as unclaimed winnings. Chairman 

Moses asked if the state receives the funds in their 

entirety or a percentage. Director of Administration, 

Audit, and Finance Brandi White explained that it 

depends how it transpires. Unclaimed jackpots will go 

to the State Treasurer’s office as unclaimed property. 

If it is lost and found money, it is distributed by state 

statute.  

▪ Chairman Moses asked if the unaudited revenue 

reports are impacted by the updated numbers 

provided by General Manager Garvey. Director 

White explains that based on the figures General 

Manager Garvey had previously reported, she’s 

confident that the unaudited report will not be 

impacted, and the $300,000 difference is likely due to 

the inclusion of sports gaming revenue. Chairman 

Moses said that we will double-check that the new 

numbers presented match what is reported to the State 

Lottery.   

o Commissioner Spalding asked what impact sports wagering 

has had on other casino style gaming. General Manager 

Garvey explained that sports wagering is a boon to the other 

gaming option provided. It has also increased food and 

beverage revenue.   

•  Recent/Upcoming Events and Promotions:  

o December 17 – 10 Year Anniversary $200K Final Drawing 

o December 30 – Jackpot Party 

o December 31 – NYE Pull Tabs 

o December 31 - $23K later in the evening 

o January 13 – Die of a Kind 

o January 14 - $180K Free Play for a Year 



 

o January 28 - $25K Blizzards of Cash 

• Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report 

o At the end of the reporting period, Hollywood Casino has a 

total of 433 employees. During the reporting period, 80 

employees were hired.  

o Of those new hires, 34 were hired into positions which require 

additional training to understand the proper procedures for 

responsible alcohol service. All of those employees 

successfully completed the TiPS training. In addition, there 

were 16 existing employees who successfully completed 

refresher TiPS training. 

o 54 minors were refused entry to the casino 

o 2 minors gained access to the casino 

o 175 individuals were refused entry because of appearing 

intoxicated 

o 13 VEPs gained access to the casino 

• Commissioner Spalding asked what the facility does after someone 

they suspect is intoxicated is removed or refused entry to the casino. 

General Manager Garvey explained that many times the person has 

someone who can drive for them. In the instance that someone they 

suspect is intoxicated tries to drive away from the property, casino 

staff contact local law enforcement to inform them of their suspicions.  

• COVID-19 

o 6 cases in December and 3 so far in January. 

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; 

KANSAS CROSSING 

CASINO 

(E.4.a.)  

 Jeff McKain, General Manager, reported: 

• Admissions down 1.0% compared to December 2021 

•  December 2022 revenue numbers compared to December 2021: 

o Coin in down 2.8% 

o Table games drop up 28.7% 

o Net gaming revenue up 0.04% 

• Events and Promotions:  

• December  

o Kiosk games every Monday 

o Kiosk games every Tuesday 

o Camp 49 Hot promotional specials on Wednesday 

o Casino Hot Seats every Thursday 

o Christmas Cash Climb promotion on Fridays 

o Cash is King month end promotion on Friday the 30th 

o Lita Ford concert Saturday 12th 

o Casino gift day every Saturday 

o NYE VIP dinner and Members Only concert 



 

• January 

o Kiosk games every Monday 

o Kiosk games every Tuesday 

o Camp 49 Hot promotional specials on Wednesday 

o Casino Hot Seats every Thursday 

o Card Shark promotions Friday 6th, 13th, and 20th 

o Cash is King month end promotion on Saturday the 28th 

o Casino gift day every Saturday 

o Corral concerts include Jackson Dean on Friday the 6th and Arch 

Allies on the 14th 

• Sports Wagering 

o Points Bet, BetMGM, and Caesars are the mobile sports gaming 

platforms partners. 

▪ BetMGM  

• Handle is up 0.5% 

• NFL handle increased 9% 

• Highest handle single game was Kansas City vs. 

Cincinnati 

• Kansas sports teams consisted of 5% of total 

handle in December  

▪ Caesars 

• Handle decreased 2% 

• Overall bet also decreased 12% 

• Chiefs generated 94% more handle than any other 

NFL team. 

• The retail location has received its sports 

wagering kiosks and plans to go live on the 17th. 

▪  PointsBet 

• Handle grew $300,000 

• Unique betters up 10% 

o Chairman Moses asked if the facility managers would be able to 

provide the sports wagering figures in their written reports as well 

as oral reports or if that would be too difficult. Executive Director 

Brownlee said that the managers would have to speak to whether 

it is too difficult. General Manager McKain responded saying that 

he can do whatever is asked by the commission. Chairman Moses 

said that he would like to see all the facility managers submit 

reports with sports wagering data shown like what was submitted 

by Diane Giardine and Lydia Garvey. 

• Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report 

o 201 active team members as of January 01, 2023 



 

o 600 team members hired since July 1, 2022 

o 1 inactive team member (on leave) 

o Out of 131 team members requiring TIPS training: 

▪ 35 new hires have required certification (hired since 

7/1/2022) 

▪ 26 team members have been re-certified 

▪ 6 are pending certification (training administered, waiting 

for results) 

▪ 3 need TIPS Class 

▪ 3 team members are certified trainers  

o All team members received Responsible Gambling training in 

2022 

o Kansas Crossing participated in Responsible Gambling 

Education Month in September 2022. KCC had activities to 

improve team member knowledge and stress the importance of 

Responsible Gambling for the casino and the community. 

o 71 Minors were refused entry attempting to enter the casino floor 

o 1 Minor was ejected from the casino floor 

o 25 Patrons seemingly impaired were refused entry to the casino 

floor 

o 29 Patrons seemingly impaired were ejected from the casino floor 

o 3 VEPs were removed or excluded from the casino floor 

o 68 Invalid IDs were refused entry to the casino floor 

o 405 No IDs were refused entry to the casino floor 

▪ Chairman Moses asked if the casino asks for ID to 

confirm age or identity. General Manager McKain said 

that it is typically for age. Chairman Moses asked since 

he appears older than 21, would he still have to have an 

ID to purchase a drink at the Kansas Crossing Casino. 

General Manager McKain said yes, he would still be 

required to provide valid ID.  

• COVID-19 

o Zero cases in December and zero so far in January.  

   

COMMISSION ITEMS – 

OLD BUSINESS (F.) 

 There was no old business. 

   

COMMISSION ITEMS – 

NEW BUSINESS; 

ELECTION OF VICE 

CHAIR AND 

SECRETARY  

 The Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission is required by state 

statute K.S.A. 74-8803(i) to annually elect a vice chair and secretary. 

Commissioner Kultala was the former vice chair but resigned from the 

commission in November of 2022. The vice chair position is currently 

vacant. Commissioner Turnquist is the current secretary. Commissioner 



 

(G.) Turnquist (Spalding) nominated Commissioner Jones as Vice Chair. The 

nomination carried unanimously. Commissioner Spalding (Jones) 

nominated Commissioner Turnquist as Secretary. The nomination carried 

unanimously. 

   

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(H.) 

 There were no public comments.  

   

STAFF REPORTS 

(I.1. and I.2.) 

 

 Garrett Rogers, Paralegal, reported on the Voluntary Exclusion Program 

statistics for the month of December 2022 and presented the Quarterly Illegal 

Gambling Report. 

 

Executive Director Brownlee reported:  

• Congratulated Commissioners Jones & Turnquist for being elected to 

their positions.  

• The Secretary of Administration resigned and the new Secretary, Adam 

Proffitt, has been appointed by Governor Kelly.  

• The governor’s budget recommendations came out yesterday. She is 

recommending a 5% pay increase for all state employees. KRGC asked 

for funding for historical horse racing, but due to the unknown status of 

start up the request was not included. Her budget will include language 

that will allow KRGC to charge startup costs to affected historical horse 

racing entities. The governor is recommending the balance of KRGC’s 

budget request.  

• The proposed historical horse racing regulations were sent to industry 

interested parties for review. Those are due back by January 30th. KRGC 

also sent out application packages to parties interested in an 

organizational license. Those are due back by February 28th.  

• Director of Administration, Audit, and Finance Brandi White put 

together a request for proposal to bid on a consultant to review the 

historical horse racing applications when they come into the KRGC so 

that the commissioners can receive a report on each applicant and their 

possible impact. 

• Director of Licensing and Sports Wagering DJ Lopez has contacted the 

Attorney General’s office to confirm that their staff are reviewing 

KRGC’s sports wagering regulations. Having confirmed that, Director 

Lopez shared KRGC’s additional sports wagering regulations for the 

next round of reviews.  

• KRGC continues to replace enforcement agents in the field offices. An 

agent will be added to the Topeka backgrounding unit to assist with the 

extra backgrounds resulting from sports wagering. The attorney position 

is still advertised and has not had any progress yet. As a reminder, 



 

KRGC’s reorganization puts sports wagering operations under Director 

Lopez and historical horse racing operations under Director Bailey. 

Currently we are in the licensing process for historical horse racing, DJ 

Lopez is the lead on this as he is the Licensing Director.  

• The next meeting is scheduled for February 17th, 2023 in Topeka, Ks.  

• Commissioner Turnquist asked if there will be someone to provide 

governmental affairs updates for the commission during this legislative 

session. Director Brownlee said there will be, however it is still being 

worked on.  

• Chairman Moses said that he remembers that sports wagering revenue 

data had been included in the documents prepared by staff. This month 

those numbers are not shown, why? Director White responded that the 

sports wagering data that was included last month was prepared by the 

State Lottery and that Director Lopez may be able to better explain why 

they are not in this month’s materials. Director Lopez confirmed that 

inclusion of the sports wagering data is contingent upon the Kansas 

Lottery Commission meeting before the KRGC.  

   

MOTION, EXECUTIVE 

SESSION; 

CONFIDENTIAL 

BACKGROUND 

REPORTS 

(J.3.) 

 

 

 Commissioner Spalding (Jones) moved that the Commission go into 

executive session for the purpose of reviewing confidential background 

reports presented today by the commission’s security division. In addition to 

the commissioners, the confidential background reports portion included the 

executive director, general counsel, and director of sports wagering and 

licensing. The total time for the executive session was anticipated to be ten 

(10) minutes until 11:13 a.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, 

and the subjects discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full 

record of this motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent record of 

the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. At the conclusion of the 

executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open session. The motion 

carried 4-0, and the meeting was adjourned to executive session at 11:03 p.m. 

   

RECONVENE 

(J.2.) 

 The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:13 a.m. with 

Chairman Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist, and 

Commissioner Spalding present.  

 

   

MOTION, EXECUTIVE 

SESSION; ATTORNEY-

CLIENT PRIVILEGE 

(J.3.) 

 

 Commissioner Jones (Spalding) moved that the Commission go into 

executive session for the purpose of consulting with the agency’s attorney on 

attorney-client privileged communications. In addition to the commissioners, 

the attorney-client privileged communications will include the executive 

director and general counsel. After discussion, the total time for the executive 



 

 session was anticipated to be twenty (20) minutes until 11:35 a.m. No action 

is to be taken in executive session, and the subjects discussed are to be limited 

as previously described. A full record of this motion is to be maintained as 

part of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. 

At the conclusion of the executive session, the meeting is to be continued in 

open session. The motion carried 4-0, and the meeting was adjourned to 

executive session at 11:15 a.m. 

   

RECONVENE 

(J.4.) 

 The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:35 a.m. with 

Chairman Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist, and 

Commissioner Spalding present. 

   

MOTIONS ON LICENSE 

APPLICATIONS 

(K.1.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Spalding) moved to approve the 132 license 

applications from the January 13, 2023, list of background reports referred to 

the commission for action. The motion carried 4-0. 

   

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

(L.) 

 

 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY: 

_________________________________ 

Larry Turnquist 

Secretary 

APPROVED BY: 

 

 

________________________ 

David Moses 

Chairman 
 

 There were no other items for discussion or motion.  

 

Chairman Moses stated that the February 17, 2023, commission meeting will 

begin at 10:00 a.m. for an in-person meeting at the Eisenhower State Office 

Building in Topeka, Kansas.  

 

Commissioner Spalding (Jones) moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion 

passed 4-0. The meeting was adjourned at 11:38 a.m. 

 



February 17, 2023 Recommended for Approval GLI Test Labs

Manufacturer File Number Game Name

Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-22-24 Dollar King - Thunder Cash

Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-22-29 Roma Invicta

Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-22-32 Integrated Jackpot Controller Base

Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-22-33 JCM UBA-10 US BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-22-34 LCD Button Panels for A600

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-132 JCM iVizion Bill Validator Firmware

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-142 JCM UBA BILL ACCEPTOR FIRMWARE

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-143 JCM UBA PRO

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-144 JCM UBA PRO Firmware

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-150 7.02.73.02

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-23-01 System Base

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. SY-07-ARI-22-05 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. SY-509-ARI-21-01 N/A

BetMGM   *   02/09/2023 SY-675-ROD-22-01 PAM & Sports Wagering

CADILLAC JACK MO-22-CAD-22-24 Fizzy Frenzy

CADILLAC JACK MO-22-CAD-22-26 Potion Pays

CADILLAC JACK MO-22-CAD-23-01 MEI SC Advance Bill Validator Firmware

CADILLAC JACK MO-283-CAD-22-04 Operating System

Caesars   *   01/26/2023 SY-579-AWH-22-17 Retail Sports Wagering

Caesars   *   02/01/2023 SY-652-AWH-23-02 Sports Wagering

DraftKings   *   01/27/2023 SY-563-DFK-23-01 PAM & Sports Wagering

Everi Games, Inc. MO-22-MMG-22-26 JCM iVizion USA Firmware

Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-22-93 QX60.30.1x64_L2.4.14-98_P1.23.8-9

Everi Payments, Inc. MO-22-GAC-17-03 ITHACA EPIC 950 PRINTER HARDWARE

Everi Payments, Inc. SY-73-GAC-22-02 Kiosk Software

FanDuel   *   01/23/2023 SY-559-FAN-23-01 Sportsbook

FanDuel   *   02/06/2023 SY-559-FAN-23-02 Sportsbook

FanDuel   *   01/23/2023 SY-580-FAN-23-01 PAM

FanDuel   *   02/06/2023 SY-580-FAN-23-02 Sportsbook

IGT MO-22-IGT-21-20 Wheel of Fortune Double Gold Gold Spin Deluxe

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-51 Wheel of Fortune Lucky Coins on Tour Sign Controller

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-52 JCM iVIZION Bill Validator Software

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-53 JCM iVIZION Bill Validator Software

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-55 R SERIES

IGT MO-663-IGT-22-32 Operating System

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-147 Wheel of Fortune Cash Link Sign Controller

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-149 Prosperity Link Ri Jin Dou Jin

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-153 Prosperity Link Cai Yun Heng Tong

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-154 Prosperity Link Wan Shi Ru Yi

IGT   *   02/09/2023 SY-582-IGT-22-05 Margin Maker 2 (US 1.5.0)

IGT   *   01/27/2023 SY-582-IGT-22-06 Quick Bet Firmware

IGT   *   02/06/2023 SY-582-IGT-23-01 Quick Bet Firmware

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-214-INT-22-01 MEI SCN6607 BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-90 JCM Bill Acceptor Firmware

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-92 JCM IVIZION BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-22-106 The Green Machine

Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-23-10 ArgOS Platform Services

Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) PA-231-BAL-22-01 SK-1 Slant Gaming Machine

Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) PA-73-BAL-22-02 CM-1 Cosmic Cabinet

Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-231-SHU-22-04 MD3

PointsBet   *   01/23/2023 SY-563-PBA-23-01 PAM & Sports Wagering

*          Executive Approval



February 17, 2023 Recommended for Revocation GLI Test Labs

Revoked 

Manufacturer

Revoked Game 

Name

Revoked File 

Number Revoked ID Number New File Number New ID Number Replace By

Cadillac Jack Potion Pays MO-73-CAD-21-40 (9226) R59107 MO-22-CAD-22-26 (9226) R115925 03/19/2023

Cadillac Jack Fizzy Frenzy MO-73-CAD-21-61 (9235) R67252 MO-22-CAD-22-24 (9235) R115929 03/19/2023

IGT Q SERIES MO-22-IGT-22-26 OI0200200607 MO-663-IGT-22-32 OI0200200608 04/18/2023

IGT Q SERIES MO-22-IGT-22-26 OS020PM00607 MO-663-IGT-22-32 OS020PM00608 04/18/2023

IGT Q SERIES MO-22-IGT-22-26 OS0200000607 MO-663-IGT-22-32 OS0200000608 04/18/2023

IGT R SERIES MO-22-IGT-22-39 AI020000R0011 MO-22-IGT-22-55 AI020000R0013 04/18/2023

IGT R SERIES MO-22-IGT-22-39 ASCENT020000R0011 MO-22-IGT-22-55 ASCENT020000R0013 04/18/2023

IGT Wan Shi Ru Yi MO-73-IGT-22-127 GAME020009PLBP03 MO-73-IGT-22-154 GAME020009PLBP04 04/18/2023

IGT Wan Shi Ru Yi MO-73-IGT-22-127 GI020009PLBP003 MO-73-IGT-22-154 GI020009PLBP004 04/18/2023

IGT Cai Yun Heng Tong MO-73-IGT-22-128 GI02000PLAP003 MO-73-IGT-22-153 GI020009PLAP004 04/18/2023

IGT Cai Yun Heng Tong MO-73-IGT-22-128 GAME02000PLAP03 MO-73-IGT-22-153 GAME020009PLAP04 04/18/2023



January 13, 2023 Recommended for Approval

CORRECTED COPY

01/19/2023

GLI Test Labs

Manufacturer File Number Game Name

Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-22-26 Mai Tai Money

Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-22-28 JCM IVIZION BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-120 MEI ADVANCE BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-121 MEI Advance Bill Validator Firmware

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-131 JCM iVizion Bill Validator Firmware

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-132 JCM iVizion Bill Validator Firmware

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-145 Fight for Troy - Dollar Storm

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-146 Aristocrat Legends Deluxe

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-147 Aristocrat Legends Vertex Schedule

CADILLAC JACK MO-22-CAD-22-25 Hai Long

CADILLAC JACK MO-22-CAD-22-29 JCM iVIZION Firmware

CADILLAC JACK MO-73-CAD-22-62 Peacock Beauty Gold

CADILLAC JACK MO-73-CAD-22-63 Tiger Lord Gold

CADILLAC JACK MO-73-CAD-22-68 Long Bao Bao

CADILLAC JACK MO-73-CAD-22-69 Shamrock Fortunes

CADILLAC JACK SY-283-CAD-22-02 Progressive System V21.2.0

Caesars   *** SY-579-AWH-22-17 Sportsbook

DraftKings   ** SY-563-DFK-22-04 PAM & SWP

Everi Games, Inc. MO-22-MMG-22-21 MEI SCN66 Firmware

Everi Games, Inc. SY-294-MMG-21-03 Everi Server Suite 1.1.0

Everi Games, Inc. SY-63-MMG-22-01 Nitro 5.1

Everi Payments, Inc. SY-22-GAC-22-02 Kiosk Software

FanDuel   * SY-580-FAN-22-24 PAM

FanDuel   ** SY-559-FAN-22-24 Sportsbook

FanDuel   **** SY-559-FAN-22-25 Sportsbook

FanDuel   **** SY-580-FAN-22-25 PAM

IGT MO-10-IGT-20-03 Double Wild Cherry Jackpots

IGT MO-21-IGT-22-04 Let’s Make A Deal

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-82 Wheel of Fortune Gold Spin Deluxe (LED) Sign Controller

IGT MO-22-IGT-21-29 Wheel of Fortune Five Times Pay Gold Spin Deluxe

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-40 WOF Diamond Spins Triple Double Stars

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-45 Wu Dragon

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-46 PeakSlant Button Panel and Lighting Firmware

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-49 WOF Diamond Spins 2x Wilds

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-54 PeakCurve Button Panel and Lighting Firmware

IGT MO-73-IGT-21-147 Chinese Fortune

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-100 Fortune Coin Extra

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-143 Let’s Make A Deal Sign Controller

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-22 Fu Gui Hao Men II Magnificent Fortunes

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-24 Fortune Rockets

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-81 Fortune Owl

IGT PA-22-IGT-22-04 PeakCurve Cabinet

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-22-INT-22-08 JCM iVIZION BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-73-INT-22-13 Ultra Rush Gold African Adventure

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-73-INT-22-19 Ultra Rush Gold Midnight Ice

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-115 Boosted Great Stacks Extended Game

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-116 Mayan Chief Boosted Great Stacks

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-21-15 China Shores Boosted Great Stacks

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-74 Pirate's Loot

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-81 Cash Parade Desert Beauty

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-82 Cash Parade Queen Of The Lagoon

KONAMI GAMING INC. PA-73-KON-22-01 Dimension Top Box KGP-1 Machine

Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-22-120 Blazing 777 Triple Double Jackpot Wild Nudge

Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-22-127 Double Money Link Lunar Celebration

Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-22-128 JCM UBA Bill Validator Firmware

Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-22-134 RCU Firmware

*        Executive Approval on 12/16/2022

**       Executive Approval on 12/20/2022

***     Executive Approval on 12/26/2022

****    Executive Approval on 01/03/2023



February 17, 2023 Recommended for Approval BMM Test Labs

Manufacturer Report Number Game Name

Aristocrat Technologies Inc. ATI14562KS Bao Zhu Zhao Fu - Red Festival 1.01-67751

Aristocrat Technologies Inc. ATI15402KS Bao Zhu Zhao Fu - Blue Festival 1.01-67752

Konami KGI12861KS Imperial Wealth Triple Sparkle

Konami KGI13621KS Money Trails Shining Phoenix

Konami KGI13631KS Money Trails Golden Rabbit



February 17, 2023 Recommended for Revocation BMM Test Labs

Revoked 

Manufacturer Revoked Game Name

Revoked 

File Number Revoked ID Number

New File 

Number New ID Number

Replace 

By

Konami Money Trails Shining Phoenix KGI12891KS KGI_M811CSL015WD09 KGI13621KS KGI_M811CSL020WD09 03/19/2023

Konami Money Trails Golden Rabbit KGI12901KS KGI_M812CSL016WD09 KGI13631KS KGI_M812CSL020WD09 03/19/2023



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hollywood Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

February 17, 2023 

 

 

Item #/ (Description) 
Regulation 

Waiver? 
Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

HW187 – Marketing Org Chart 

– Asst Marketing Mgr. & 

Marketing Operations Mgr. 

No 
KAR 112-104-2 / Marketing Org  

Chart 
Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 



 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

February 17, 2023 

 

By: Diane Giardine 

 

For the month of January 2023, BHCR experienced a decrease in Total Gaming Revenue of 7.77% over January 

2022.  Total Slot Revenue was down 9.02% and Table Games Revenue was up 2.61%.   

 

For the month of January 2023, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery was 

($15,678.13).  This is down 153.08% from December 2022.  Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by 

the Kansas Lottery was $2,333,293.40.  This is down 58.97% as compared to December 2022.   

 

 

 

 

Upcoming Promotions & Events 

 

• Weekly Kiosk Games 

• Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 

• Gift Promotions  

• Slot Tournament Mania 

• VIP Promotions 

• Promotions for United Wireless Arena Events 

 

Upcoming Entertainment & Events  

 

• Glenn Miller Orchestra – February 4 

• Hairball – February 10 

• For King & Country – April 29 

• Soccer – Kansas Bandits – December – March 

• Football – Southwest Storm – March - May 

 

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  January  January  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2023  2022  2023  2022 
         

Electronic gaming machines  
      

3,195,626.16   3,513,447.37  
    

25,087,101.89   25,818,406.72 
         

Table games  
         

434,957.63   422,943.13  
      

3,108,243.43   2,918,974.02 
         

Other #  
                   

63.81   185.34  
              

8,047.30   5,984.60 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue 

      
3,630,647.60   

    
3,936,575.84   

    
28,203,392.62   

    
28,743,365.34  

         

State Share 22%  
         

798,742.47   
       

866,046.68   
      

6,204,746.38   
      

6,323,540.37  
         

Local Share 3%  
         

108,919.43   
       

118,097.28   
         

846,101.78   
         

862,300.96  
         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  
            

72,612.95   
         

78,731.52   
         

564,067.85   
         

574,867.31  
         

Casino Share 73%  
      

2,650,372.75   
    

2,873,700.36   
    

20,588,476.61   
    

20,982,656.70  
         

   
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

 



KANSAS STAR CASINO 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

February 17,2023 

By: Doug Lang 

For the month of January 2023, KSC experienced an increase in Total Gaming Revenue of 2.1% over January 

2022. Total Slot Revenue was down 3.1 % and Table Games Revenue was up 28.2%. 

 
For the month of January 2023, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery was 

$148K. This is down 58% from December 2022. Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas 

Lottery was $3.445M. This is up 54% as compared to December 2022. 

 

 
January Sports Betting 

 

• $59.8 million was wagered on FanDuel online 

• $1.32 million was wagered in person at FanDuel retail. Of this, $659k was bet over the counter 

and $673k was bet on the kiosks 

• There was a total of 14,586 bets made in person at FanDuel retail 

• The largest wager placed at retail was on Sunday, January 8 taking the Green Bay Packers to beat 

the Detroit Lions. The wager amount was $25,885.50 and it lost 

• The largest wager won at retail was on Tuesday, January 31 with the Kansas Jayhawks over the 

Kansas State Wildcats. That wager was for $16,102.50 

• On Sunday, January 29, there was $219,437 wagered at FanDuel retail making it the largest 

wagered day since sports wagering began on September 1st  

 
 

Upcoming Promotions & Events 

 
• Double Down | Friday and Saturdays 

• Black and Decker 40pc. Socket Set | Friday, February 17 | 2p-9p 

• Hosted Event | Saturdays in February | $10,000 in Boyd Play or Free Bet | 6p-7:30p 

• QT gift cards | Friday, February 24 | 2p-9p 

 

Upcoming Entertainment & Events 

• Wichita Flea Market | February 24-25 | Arena 

• USA Wrestling | March 3-5 | Arena 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         

  January  January  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

         

Electronic gaming machines  
    

11,256,219.10   10,386,644.63  
     

77,899,905.85   81,642,316.66 

         

Table games  
       

2,179,203.25   1,690,840.85  
     

15,252,561.26   13,716,350.96 

         

Other #  
                  

145.14   276.42  
             

16,477.16   13,925.26 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue 

    
13,435,567.49   

   
12,077,761.90   

     
93,168,944.27   

     
95,372,592.88  

         

State Share 22% (Tier 1)**  
       

2,955,824.85   
     

2,657,107.62   
     

20,497,167.74   
     

20,981,970.43  

         

State Share 2% marginal (Tier 2)** 
                           

-                              -     
                            

-     
                            

-    

         

Local Share 3%  
          

403,067.02   
         

362,332.86   
        

2,795,068.33   
        

2,861,177.79  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  
          

268,711.35   
         

241,555.24   
        

1,863,378.89   
        

1,907,451.86  

         

Casino Share  73%  
       

9,807,964.27   
     

8,816,766.19   
     

68,013,329.32   
     

69,621,992.80  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

 



HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

 THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
February 17, 2023 

 
By: Dave Rice 

 
January 2023 

 
Admissions 

• January 2023 admissions were up 29.8% compared to January of 2022  

January 2023 Revenue Numbers 

• Total Gaming Revenue came in at $12.6M – an increase of 15.5%  

• Slot Revenue was $11.5M  - an increase of 14.9% 

• Table Games Revenue (including Poker) was $1.1M – an increase of 22% 

• Retail Sportsbook Taxable Revenue was negative in January – a loss of $138,979 

• Platform Sportsbook Taxable Revenue was $30,550 

Recent/Upcoming Events 

• January 28 - $25K Blizzards of Cash 

• February 1 - $25K Progressive Drawings 

• February 4 – Slot Point Race 

• February 10 – Big Game Suitcase Event 

• February 12 – Big Game Big Drawing 

• February 19 – Daytona 500 Even or Odd Drawing 

• February 26 – Penn Millionaire Promotion 

o Penn Millionaire Slot Tournament – March 24 

• March 2 – Mad March Slot Tournaments 

o Preliminary Tournaments – March 2, 9, and 23 

o Grand Finale Tournament – March 30 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  January  January  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2023  2022  2023  2022 
         

Electronic gaming machines  
   

11,525,685.13   10,028,347.88  
     

80,681,505.75   78,062,570.99 
         

Table games  
     

1,105,854.50   906,090.35  
        

9,413,715.05   6,752,591.20 
         

Other #  
                

113.70   89.66  
               

7,269.92   11,636.39 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue 

   
12,631,653.33   

   
10,934,527.89   

     
90,102,490.72   

     
84,826,798.58  

         

State Share 22%  
     

2,778,963.73   
     

2,405,596.14   
     

19,822,547.96   
     

18,661,895.69  
         

Local Share 3%  
         

378,949.60   
         

328,035.84   
        

2,703,074.72   
        

2,544,803.96  
         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  
         

252,633.07   
         

218,690.56   
        

1,802,049.81   
        

1,696,535.97  
         

Casino Share 73%  
     

9,221,106.93   
     

7,982,205.36   
     

65,774,818.23   
     

61,923,562.96  
         

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.   

 



KANSAS CROSSING CASINO + HOTEL 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
February 17th, 2023 

By: Jeff McKain 
 

Kansas Crossing Casino is reporting the following preliminary results for January 
2023 vs January 2022; 
   

•          9.3% Increase in Admissions 
•            2% Increase in Coin-In 
•       20.1%  Increase in Table Drop  
•       14.3% Increase in Net Gaming Revenue 
•   -$10,584 Retail Sportsbook Revenue  
• 1,179,189 Digital Sportsbook Revenue   

 
Promotions + Events  
  

•   January 
o Kiosk games every Monday.  
o Casino Hot Seats every Tuesday.   
o Camp 49 promotional specials on Wednesday.    
o Casino Hot Seats every Thursday.    
o Card Shark promotion Friday the 6th, 13th, and 20th.  
o Cash is King month end promotion on Saturday the 28th.    
o Casino gift day every Saturday.  
o Corral concerts included Jackson Dean on Friday the 6th and Arch Allies 

on the 13th.   
 

•   February 
o Casino Hot Seats every Monday.  
o Casino Hot Seats every Tuesday.  
o Camp 49 promotional specials on Wednesday.    
o Casino Hot Seats every Thursday.    



o Love is in the Spins promotion Friday the 3rd, 10th and 17th.  
o 80’s rock band Slaughter on Friday 24th.  
o Cash is King month end promotion on Saturday the 25th.     
o Casino gift day every Saturday.  

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  January  January  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2023  2022  2023  2022 
         

Electronic gaming machines  
      

3,052,705.99   2,806,286.90  
    

21,876,064.69   20,920,063.42 
         

Table games  
         

363,886.00   181,329.00  
      

1,728,060.50   1,421,022.50 
         

Other #  
                   

49.00   45.00  
              

1,517.09   1,366.15 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue 

      
3,416,640.99   

    
2,987,660.90   

    
23,605,642.28   

    
22,342,452.07  

         

State Share 22%  
         

751,661.02   
       

657,285.40   
      

5,193,241.30   
      

4,915,339.46  
         

Local Share 3%  
         

102,499.23   
         

89,629.83   
         

708,169.27   
         

670,273.56  
         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  
            

68,332.82   
         

59,753.22   
         

472,112.85   
         

446,849.04  
         

Casino Share 73%  
      

2,494,147.92   
    

2,180,992.46   
    

17,232,118.86   
    

16,309,990.01  
         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino Kansas Star Casino Hollywood Casino Kansas Crossing Casino Total All Casinos 
EGM 3,195,626$             11,256,219$               11,525,685$                3,052,706$                         29,030,236$               
Table Games 434,958                  2,179,203                   1,105,855                    363,886                               4,083,901                   
Other # 64                            145                              114                               49                                         372                              

Total 3,630,648$            13,435,567$              12,631,653$               3,416,641$                         33,114,509$              

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
2010 20,663,987$           -$                                 -$                                  -$                                          20,663,987$               
2011 40,055,280             -                                   -                                     -                                            40,055,280                 
2012 43,886,501             98,855,928                 54,622,687                  -                                            197,365,116               
2013 43,353,504             192,187,166               124,993,721                -                                            360,534,391               
2014 39,906,275             181,079,650               132,036,392                -                                            353,022,317               
2015 40,513,186             181,754,051               142,759,065                -                                            365,026,302               
2016 38,937,088             181,600,677               143,833,330                -                                            364,371,095               
2017 40,222,932             178,105,968               144,582,037                8,206,260                            371,117,197               
2018 41,186,638             182,084,527               148,770,984                32,465,853                         404,508,001               
2019 41,589,906             184,157,835               150,790,865                34,489,213                         411,027,819               
2020 32,971,510             150,355,262               122,114,403                28,620,752                         334,061,926               
2021 43,690,403             172,711,043               124,388,370                33,857,278                         374,647,093               
2022 49,581,344             162,352,371               149,127,943                39,911,158                         400,972,817               
2023 28,203,393             93,168,944                 90,102,491                  23,605,642                         235,080,470               

Total Since Opening 544,761,946$        1,958,413,423$        1,528,122,287$          201,156,156$                    4,232,453,812$        

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
State of Kansas 6,204,746               20,497,168                 19,822,548                  5,193,241                            51,717,703                 
Local Governments 846,102                  2,795,068                   2,703,075                    708,169                               7,052,414                   

 Problem Gambling and 
Addictions Fund 564,068                  1,863,379                   1,802,050                    472,113                               4,701,609                   
Casino Manager 20,588,477             68,013,329                 65,774,818                  17,232,119                         171,608,743               

Total 28,203,393            93,168,944                90,102,491                 23,605,642                         235,080,470              

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos 
State of Kansas 119,847,628           430,979,631               336,186,903                44,254,354                         931,268,516               
Local Governments 16,342,858             58,752,403                 45,843,669                  6,034,685                            126,973,614               

 Problem Gambling and 
Addictions Fund 10,895,239             39,168,268                 30,562,446                  4,023,123                            84,649,076                 
Casino Manager 397,676,221           1,429,513,121           1,115,529,269             146,843,994                       3,089,562,605           

Total 544,761,946          1,958,413,423           1,528,122,287            201,156,156                      4,232,453,812           

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

January 2023 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending January 31, 2023

Cumulative Gaming Revenue per Fiscal Year

Fund Distribution FY 2023

Fund Distribution Since Opening



 
  

 
 

 
                   

      

 

 
 

 
02.08.2023 

62.7%
37.3%

VEP Gender

Male

Female

67.2%

32.8%

Exclusion Period

2-Year

Lifetime

0.2% 0.7%

24.8%

14.8%

45.2%

3.4%
10.9%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

NW NC NE SW SC SE Other

Lottery Region

0.0%
3.4%

21.2%

28.2%
26.1%

15.1%

5.6%

Under 18 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 Older

Age of VEP

34

13

28
33

19 21 20
15

31
27 27

2422
18

24
27

24

14

21

31

22

32

24
28

15
20

26 26
22 22 20

24
21 22 23 23

19 17 17

0 0

14 13
17

14

21

10 11
16

11
16

8

19 18
15

11

18
21

10 9
12

24
21

9 11 11 13

20
24

30

7 6

14

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

VEP Enrollments by Year

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Voluntary Exclusion Program  
January 2010 –January 2023 

Voluntary Exclusions = 2854 
Violation Incidents = 411 (367 individuals) 

 

African Am.
9.4%

Asian/P.I.
16.0%

Caucasian
63.8%

Lat/His
8.7%

Native Am.
0.44%

Other
1.7%

Ethnicity



 

 

 

 

         

    

02/08/2023 

KRGC Voluntarily Excluded Persons 
December 2009 – January 2023 

Colorado – 4 
Iowa – 4  
Kansas-2531 
Missouri -234 
Nebraska – 6 
Oklahoma – 46 
Other-29 
 
 

  

TOTAL VEPs = 2854 

 

 

1
 

 

20
 

5 
74 

 

 

273 

 

 

 1144 

 

 
27 

1 
16 

1 
61 

 

 

 

326 
59 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

2 

170 

 

 

 

 

50 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

 6 
20 

5 

 

1 

 

2 

 

43 

2 

 
4 

1 

 2 

19 

 

10 

8 

 

 

3 

1 

5 

 

 
   2 

  
13 

 

 
48 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

2 

1 

5 

2 

5 

 

1 

2 

4 

 

5 

2 1 

2 1 

2 2 

1 5 

2 

2 

12 

 

 

3 

4 

 

 

1 

 

1 

1 

1 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 

1 



All Departments
DeptID  All
All Funds Beg. Balance 3,970,163        Beg. Balance 179,051            Beg. Balance 121,184            Beg. Balance 66,510             

Revenue 3,312,113        Revenue 287,121            Revenue 15,084              Revenue ‐                        
Expenses 4,169,704        Expenses 194,965            Expenses 61,533              Expenses 3,166               
End Balance 3,112,572        End Balance 271,208            End Balance 74,735              End Balance 63,344             

Fund
BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2022 
ACTUALS

YTD FY2023 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
January 
FY2022 
ACTUALS

January 
FY2023 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
YTD FY2023 
BUDGET

YTD FY2023 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 3,315,236 3,667,620 352,384 11% 470,610 529,800 59,190 13% 4,468,546 3,667,620 ‐800,926 ‐18%
10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% ‐334,030 0 334,030 ‐100%
Net Salaries and Wages 3,315,236 3,667,620 352,384 11% 470,610 529,800 59,190 13% 4,134,516 3,667,620 ‐466,896 ‐11%

52000 Communication 44,801 38,111 ‐6,690 ‐15% 6,324 4,813 ‐1,511 ‐24% 55,533 38,111 ‐17,423 ‐31%
52100 Freight and Express 647 1,102 456 71% 113 208 95 84% 758 1,102 344 45%
52200 Printing and Advertising 100 1,366 1,266 1265% 0 1,320 1,320 0% 846 1,366 520 61%
52300 Rents 170,792 173,862 3,070 2% 53,547 54,289 743 1% 146,504 173,862 27,358 19%
52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 3,335 7,449 4,113 123% 158 30 ‐128 ‐81% 32,496 7,449 ‐25,048 ‐77%
52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 17,661 26,705 9,044 51% 1,016 3,209 2,193 216% 117,182 26,705 ‐90,478 ‐77%
52520 Out of State Travel and Subsistence 10,187 17,070 6,883 68% 0 888 888 0% 0 17,070 17,070 0%
52530 International Travel and Subsistence 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
52600 Fees‐Other Services 178,458 205,860 27,402 15% 22,447 27,512 5,065 23% 199,290 205,860 6,570 3%
52700 Fee‐Professional Services 1,404 7,346 5,943 423% 179 1,203 1,024 574% 193,988 7,346 ‐186,641 ‐96%
52900 Other Contractual Services 7,371 3,957 ‐3,414 ‐46% 0 0 0 0% 13,033 3,957 ‐9,076 ‐70%
Subtotal Contractual Services 434,755 482,827 48,072 11% 83,782 93,470 9,688 12% 759,631 482,827 ‐276,804 ‐36%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 49 24 ‐25 ‐51% 0 13 13 0% 0 24 24 0%
53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 4,519 3,932 ‐588 ‐13% 9 57 48 503% 2,217 3,932 1,715 77%
53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 5,358 8,074 2,716 51% 1,503 807 ‐696 ‐46% 17,765 8,074 ‐9,692 ‐55%
53600 Pro Science Supply Material 3,262 586 ‐2,676 ‐82% 80 44 ‐37 ‐46% 20,918 586 ‐20,332 ‐97%
53700 Office and Data Supplies 6,223 10,819 4,596 74% 1,627 1,130 ‐497 ‐31% 49,032 10,819 ‐38,213 ‐78%
53900 Other Supplies and Materials 1,868 14,292 12,424 665% 422 4,519 4,097 972% 3,267 14,292 11,025 338%
Subtotal Commodities 21,278 37,726 16,448 77% 3,641 6,570 2,929 80% 93,199 37,726 ‐55,473 ‐60%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 38,793 241,195 202,402 522% 8,202 543 ‐7,659 ‐93% 137,258 241,195 103,937 76%

55960 Vol Retirement Incentive 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56000 Debt Service ‐ Principal 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56100 Payments for Interest and Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Subtotal VRIP and Debt Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%

Grand Total 3,810,063 4,429,368 619,305 16% 566,235 630,383 64,147 11% 5,124,605 4,429,368 ‐695,237 ‐14%

Cash Fund Balances as of January 31, 2023
ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.




	A.1 2023-2-17 Agenda
	C.1 Meeting Minutes - January 13 2023 - V3
	D.1.a. GLI Approval - February 17, 2023 - KRGC Meeting
	D.1.b. GLI Revocation - February 17, 2023 - KRGC Meeting
	D.1.c. GLI Aproval Letters January 2023 - CORRECTIONS
	D.1.d. BMM Approval - February 17, 2023 - KRGC Meeting
	D.1.e. BMM Revocation - February 17, 2023 - KRGC Meeting
	D.2.a.. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway Internal Control Amendment Approvals
	E.1.a. Boot Hill January Monthly Report
	E.1.b. BH - January 2023 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.a. Kansas Star January monthly report
	E.2.b KS - January 2023 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.a. January Monthly Report - HW
	E.3.b HW - January 2023 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.4.a KCC February 17th  2023 KRGC meeting
	E.4.b KCC - January 2023 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.5 Aggregated Casino Financials - January 2023 Revenue
	I.1.a. VEP Data Chart-Ending January 2023
	I.1.b. VEP Data Map-January 2023
	Y. Dept by Budget Unit JanFY23
	Z. February 2023 Commission Calendar



